ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 24, 2009
3:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel l er, Co-Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Lindsey Hol nes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 187

"An Act requiring insurance coverage for autism spectrum
di sorders, describing the nethod for establishing a treatnent
plan for those disorders, and defining the treatnent required
for those disorders; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 188

"An Act relating to the taxation of noist snuff tobacco, and
anending the definition of 'tobacco product' in provisions
| evyi ng an excise tax on those products.”

- RESCHEDULED TO 3/ 26/ 09
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 187

SHORT TI TLE: I NS. COVERAGE: AUTI SM SPECTRUM DI SORDER
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) PETERSEN

03/ 12/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 09 (H) HSS, L&C
03/ 24/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2009



W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PETE PETERSEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 187 as the prine sponsor,
responded to questions, and provi ded comments.

ASHLEY ROUSSON, St aff

to Representative Pete Petersen

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 187 for the prinme sponsor,
Representati ve Petersen, and responded to questi ons.

JAVES BOUDER, COO

The Vista School and The Vi sta Foundati on

Her shey, Pennsyl vani a

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a Power Point and spoke about the
cost and benefit of HB 187.

DR. G NA GREEN

Board Certified Behavior Analyst

San Diego, California

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about HB 187.

DENNI S BAI LEY, Attorney

Legi sl ati ve Legal Counsel

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As the drafter of HB 187, responded to
guestions about the bill.

CHRI S SADDLER

Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 187.
TONJA UPDI KE

Sol dat na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 187.

LORI KI NG
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 187.

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Director

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2009



Governor's Council on Disabilities & Special Education
O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 187.

KATHY FI TZGERALD
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support HB 187.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Anchorage O fice

Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
( DCEED)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about HB 187.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:03:52 PM

CO CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 03 p. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, Coghill, G ssna, and Seaton were
present at the call to order. Representatives Lynn and Hol nes

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 187-1NS. COVERAGE: AUTI SM SPECTRUM DI SORDER

3:04: 15 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 187, "An Act requiring insurance coverage for
autism spectrum disorders, descri bi ng t he nmet hod for
establishing a treatnent plan for those disorders, and defining
the treatnment required for those disorders; and providing for an
effective date.”

3:04:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE PETERSEN, Al aska State Legislature, read
from the Sponsor Statenent [Included in the nenbers' packets.]
and said that many children diagnosed with an Autism Spectrum
Di sorder (ASD) would not receive treatnent, even though
treatment had been shown to inprove the synptons of ASD. He
confirmed the exorbitant costs which famlies paid for

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2009



treatnment, and the increnental societal costs for not treating
autism He explained that "HB 187 would require insurance
coverage for autism spectrum disorders, including the behavior
therapies that after 30 years of study have shown to be the only
effective treatnment of these disorders.” He confirmed that the
cost savings from the treatnents far outweighed the cost of
treatment or the increnmental societal cost of no treatnent,
whi ch he observed would be "steep." He reported significant
savings to the state and |ocal governnents with HB 187. He
pointed out that the required insurance coverage for ASD would
bring qualified ASD professionals to Alaska to neet these needs.

3:07:32 PM

ASHLEY ROUSSON, Staff to Representative Pete Petersen, Al aska
State Legislature, explained the sectional analysis [Included in
the nmenbers' packets.] and highlighted that Section 1 anended
the current insurance statute to include coverage for autism
spectrum di sorders. She detailed that treatnent would be
covered as prescribed by a licensed physician or psychol ogi st;
treatment would be provided by an autism service provider;
treatment would be outlined in a treatnent plan, prescribed by
t he physician or psychologist, and followed by a conprehensive
eval uation; and that treatnment would include nedically necessary
phar macy care, psychiatric care, psychol ogi cal care,
rehabilitative care, and therapeutic care. She reported that
the coverage would include people under the age of 21, and that
there would be a naxi mum annual benefit of $36,000, with an
annual inflation adjustnent. She continued and expl ai ned that
Section 2 of HB 187 stated that the coverage would be applied
for policies issued on or after January 1, 2010.

3:09:44 PM

M5. ROUSSON informed the commttee that experts were prepared to
testify.

3:10: 29 PM

The committee took an at-ease from3:10 p.m to 3:12 p. m

3:12: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Section 1(a)(2) and asked if
the rehabilitative care was for care until there was no | onger

progress, or was ongoing "as long as the person needs sone
hel p. "

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2009



3:13:43 PM

M5. ROUSSON referred to the definition of "nedically necessary”
in Section 1(a)(1l) which explained that the treatnent and care
was described in subparagraphs (A, (B), and (C). She said that
the treatnent would include prevention and anelioration for a
condition or disability, as well as assistance in achieving
maxi mum functional capacity wth daily activities.

3:14:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that treatnment services
would not have a termnation date, if the nedical analysis was
for progression of the condition.

3:15: 04 PM

M5. ROUSSON agreed, but she pointed out the limtations to
coverage contained in the bill.

3:17: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said that HB 187 was to help people with
the disorder, that there had been significant inprovenents in
the treatnents, and that there were greater successes,
especially when treatnent was received at an early age.

3:18: 59 PM

JAMES BOUDER, COO, The Vista School and The Vista Foundation,
expl ai ned that he was the COO of a private school in Hershey, PA
whi ch provided services to children wth autism He detailed
that he had provided cost analysis testinony for simlar
legislation in many other states. He presented a Power Point
titled "The Cost and Benefit of HB 187." [Included in the
nmenbers' packets. ]

MR. BOUDER referred to slide 2, "Cost Benefit Analysis,"” and
said he would discuss the effect that mandating coverage would
have on commercial insurance rates and state enployee clains if
the benefit were extended to dependents. He spoke about the
| ong-term savings considerations and he sunmarized the cost
effect to other states.

3:23:20 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2009



MR. BOUDER pointed to slide 3, "Summary of HB 187," and he
stated that HB 187 required private insurance coverage for
autism and provided coverage for a list of nedically necessary
servi ces.

3:23:49 PM

MR. BOUDER explained slide 4, "Commercial |Insurance Cost
Estimates.” He estimated that nore than 48,000 Al askans between
the ages of 2 and 20 had insurance under plans subject to HB
187. He explained the "treated prevalence rates" wused to
establish low, md, and high range estimates for the nunber of
children seeking treatnent. He explained that the highest
expenses would be during the early childhood vyears. He said

t hat applied behavior analysis (ABA) was the nost effective, and
the nost expensive, treatnent; and that this was wusually
provi ded at younger ages.

3:25:56 PM

MR. BOUDER considered slide 5, also titled "Comercial I|nsurance
Cost Estimates,” which continued the assunptions discussed on
slide 4. He declared that the assunption of 85 percent Medica
Loss Ratio was the industry standard, and described this as the
percentage of premuns collected that were spent on clains. He
directed attention to the estimated prem um base of nore than
$345 million in 2009, and he explained how he collected this
i nformati on. He declared that the final assunption was for an
adequate provider network to be in place by the effective date.
He noted that there was not an adequate provider network
currently available in Alaska, and that it would take tine to
recruit, train, and deploy trained providers.

3:28:32 PM
VR. BOUDER di scussed slide 6, " How Many? Eligible
Beneficiaries." He expl ai ned t he tabl e of eligible

beneficiaries, and announced that there would be about 48, 000
eligible children in Al aska. He continued on to slide 7, "How

Many? Treated Prevalence Assunptions,” and he noted that
community preval ence was not an assunption to use for autism as
it had a range of severity. He referred instead to four

different studies that found about 1 in 500 children wth
autism He noted that his assunption was for a nore frequent
occurrence. He explained that an adequate treatnent program
woul d bring nore people to utilize these services.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2009



3:31: 59 PM

MR. BOUDER showed slide 8, "How Mich? Low Estimate (Treated
Prevalence 1 in 400)," and said that he used an estinmate from
the actuarial firm Mercer. He estimated the cost per person to
be $2.24 per nmenber per nonth.

3:34: 02 PM

MR. BOUDER continued on to slide 9, "How Mich? Md Estimate
(Treated Prevalence 1 in 325)." He said that this table used
the same actuarial estimates for this md range estimte of
preval ence, and that the cost would be $3.60 per nenber per
nont h.

3:34:20 PM

MR. BOUDER presented slide 10, "How Much? Hi gh Estimate (Treated
Prevalence 1 in 250)." He noted that the cost would be $5.81
per nonth. He remnded the commttee that all of these

estimtes assuned that an adequate network of providers was
avai | abl e.

3:35: 00 PM

MR. BOUDER noved on to slide 11, "Short-Term Cost Estimtes."
He explained the likely scenarios for cost increases over a four
year period wwth low, md, and high preval ence rates.

3:36: 26 PM

MR. BOUDER noted on slide 12, "State Fiscal Inpact,"” that the
likely cost per state enployee per nmonth with a md range
preval ence woul d be $3.02 per nonth.

3:37:15 PM

MR. BOUDER assessed slide 13, "Future Savings," and conpared the
lack of investnent in autism treatnent to deferred maintenance
on a hone. He explained that, according to the Jacobson study
in 1999, there was a $2 nmillion savings per person with early
treat nent. He noted that the Ganz study in 2007 showed the
increnental societal cost for not treating autism to be about
$3.2 million per person. He explained that this included the
care and lost productivity for the person wth autism as well
as the lost productivity for the parents or prinmary caregivers.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2009



3:41: 25 PM

MR. BOUDER directed attention to Attachnment A. [Included in the
nmenbers' packets. ] He explained that the first page showed the
conpl eted cost anal yses for autismlegislation which has already
been enacted. He pointed out that the estimated prem um
i ncrease was between .33 and 1 percent.

3:43: 34 PM

MR. BOUDER nentioned that page 2 of Attachnment A listed nationa
actuarial firnms hired to find the costs of the |egislation, and
that all of the firms had agreed that the cost increase for
prem uns would be one percent or |ess. He concluded that the
costs in Alaska would be sinmlar to that of these other states.

3:44: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the estimted percentage of
increase for premuns on slide 11

3:45:38 PM

MR. BOUDER expl ained that the likely total clains inpact in year
one would be 25 percent of year four; year tw would be 50
percent of year four; and year three would be 75 percent of year
four.

3:46: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if transportation costs to the
facilities would be required should coverage be nandat ed. He
noted that there were not any transportation expenses in the
estimates which M. Bouder presented.

3:47:39 PM

MR. BOUDER replied that other states had I|imted provider
networks within the state. He noted that the $36,000 cap in the
bill would Iimt the fiscal inpact. He explained that the types
of services for applied behavior analysis were ordinarily
provided in a hone setting.

3:48: 49 PM

DR. G NA GREEN, Board Certified Behavior Analyst, offered to
answer any questions about autism

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2009



3:49:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked that as treatnent was to be
prescribed by a licensed physician or psychol ogist, would their
general know edge be sufficient to determ ne whether the best
treatnent was or was not the nost expensive treatnent.

3:50: 49 PM

DR. GREEN responded that the Anerican Acadeny of Pediatrics
endorsed applied behavior analysis as the preferred treatnent
for autism

3:53:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed to Section 1(e)(2) of the bill
which listed disorders that were all defined as "autism spectrum
di sorders.” He asked if there were different |evels which
required different treatnents.

3:54:10 PM

DR. GREEN acknow edged that the treatnment and the needs for al
these disorders were simlar. She explained that applied
behavior analysis treatnment was very individualized. She
commented that there were all degrees of severity.

3:57:01 PM

DR. GREEN began her presentation and explained that applied
behavi or anal ysis was a natural science approach to behavior and
that autism was just one of the areas of application. She
suggested looking at the skill deficits and then devel oping
procedures to reduce the problem behaviors and increase
i ndependent functions: self care, conmunication, social skills,
and general awareness. She explained that this procedure was
hi ghly i ndividualized. She shared that the training of the
parent was also inportant to neke available the opportunities
for the child to regularly practice these skills. She specified
that there was constant evaluation, so that if there was not
progress, the procedures and techniques were changed. She
expressed that there were nmany studies which evaluated specific
nmet hods for reducing sonme of the problem behaviors, as these
were contributors to health care costs. She explained that the
nost effective result for applied behavior analysis (ABA) was
for early, conprehensive, and intensive intervention.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 24, 2009



4:01:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL asked to clarify at what age ABA worked
best .

4:02:11 PM

DR GREEN said that the brain is nore able to absorb at a younger
age before behavioral patterns becone established. She said
t hat ol der children would often have sl ower progress.

4:03:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how a nedical nodel could determn ne
the need to intervene early when the problem may be that a
devel opnent al stage had not yet nmatured.

4:03: 55 PM

DR. CGREEN asked what Representative Coghill neant by "nedica
nodel . "

4:04: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COCHI LL responded that the ABA was a technica
screeni ng tool.

4:04:29 PM

DR GREEN clarified that ABA was a treatnment, not a screening
t ool .

REPRESENTATI VE  COGHI LL  asked i f every child could be
behavi oral | y suspect enough to be considered for the ABA

DR. GREEN specified that the child s devel opnental difficulties
needed to nmeet the diagnostic criteria for autism She pointed
out that trained professionals were good at differentiating
auti sm spectrum di sorder from other devel opnental disabilities.
She shared that there was no evidence that people with autism
got better with maturity. She stated that wthout effective
intervention, people with autism would remain inpaired, and
costly to care for

4:05:46 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 24, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referred to the subjective nature of the
di agnostics, and posed the question for finding and hel ping
people with a legitimte need, as opposed to paying people to
find a need.

4:06:14 PM

DR. GREEN agreed that there were not biological markers for
auti sm spectrum disorder. She declared that the behavioral
characteristics were clearly defined, and that experience wth
these disorders allowed for differentiation. She explained sone
of the behaviors distinctive to auti sm spectrum di sorder.

4:07:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that he would maintain this as an
ongoi ng questi on.

4:07:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 5 of Dr. Geen's letter
to the U S Assistant Secretary of Defense for Health Affairs
[Included in the nmenbers' packets.] and he read: "Wth effective
treatment, mlitary children and youths wth ASD can |ead
happier and healthier lives than they would otherw se." He
asked about the connection between mlitary children and youth
with ASD.

4:08: 11 PM

DR. GREEN responded that mlitary health care covered ABA, and
that this letter explained the nmedical necessity of ABA
treatnment for autism

4:09:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how nuch ABA takes place in the
school environnent.

4:09: 52 PM

DR. GREEN explained that nost public schools did not have the
expertise or the resources. She reported that the interventions
needed to be provided in the hones and communities, as well as
the schools, to address the needs of children with autism

4:11:47 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Section 1(b)(5) of the bill
which stated that coverage "nust cover treatnent that s
coordinated with an education program but nay not be contingent
on the coordination of treatment with an educati on program"”

4:12: 06 PM

DR. GREEN, in response to Representative Seaton, said that it
wor ked best for children with autism to coordinate the school
and the out-of-school programm ng to provide consi stency.

4:12:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked who would finance the schoo
progranms, as this was a nmandated coverage.

4:13: 27 PM

DR. GREEN, in response to Representative Seaton, opined that
financing was determ ned on a state by state basis. She pointed
out that all states were required to provide special needs
children with "a free and appropriate public education.” She
rem nded the conmttee that the early intervention treatnents
started before school age, as it was necessary to teach the
child all the basic skills for success in a school environnent.
She shared that the coordination of prograns only becane an
i ssue when children were capable of school participation.

4:15: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN referred to TRICARE mlitary insurance and
asked how many children of retired mlitary were diagnosed with
auti sm spectrum di sorder

4:15: 35 PM

DR. GREEN replied that TRICARE had a program for special needs
children of mlitary famlies. She offered her belief that the
retired mlitary insurance package did not include this
treatment benefit, but that it was being di scussed.

4:17:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Section 1(a) and asked the
reason for exclusion of a "fraternal benefit society.”

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2009



4:18: 01 PM

DENNI S BAILEY, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, explained that wth fraternal
benefit societies, such as the Benevolent & Protective O der of
El ks or the Loyal Order of Mdose, the nenbers provided benefits
for thenselves which were not considered an insurance program
He explained that this exception was conmon for mandated
cover ages.

4:18: 32 PM

CHRI' S SADDLER said that she had a 10 yr. old son with autism
She said that autism was a "huge health issue" in Alaska, as it
affected nore kids than aids, diabetes, and cancer conbined.
She shared that the Anchorage School District reported that 1 in
80 kids were on the autism spectrum  She rem nded the commttee
that autism was treatable, and that with early diagnosis and
i ntensi ve behavior treatnent, a majority of the kids would |ead
"productive, independent Ilives." She continued on to say that
wi thout effective intervention, 80 percent of the kids required
nore costly, life-long support services, at public expense. She
opined that it was a lot easier to deal with a toddler having a
tantrum than an adolescent or adult having a tantrum She
related that there were no intensive treatnent prograns for
autism in Al aska. She recounted that they were able to find a
private provider to set up a volunteer based honme program
patterned after a University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA) research

proj ect . She revealed that her son's early education
experiences lead to his extrene frustration and that there were
no programs for support. She said that the Anchorage School
District declined to provide the intensive behavioral program
that her son required. She relayed that she was directed, by
anot her parent, to Dr. John MEachin's Autism Partnership clinic
in Seal Beach, California. She stated that the clinic staff

determned her son's needs, and outlined an intervention
program She shared that it took several nmonths to hire and
train a volunteer staff menber to provide the 30 hours per week
of one-on-one interaction. She enphasized that none of this
intervention was covered by either her federal or her husband's
State of Al aska insurance. She disclosed that, after a year of
docunented inprovenent and tens of thousands of dollars of
expenses, they were able to submt a plan of care that was
approved by Medicaid, only because her son was also diagnosed
with an anxi ety disorder. She said that this Medicaid funding
paid for the staffing, but did not pay for any of the oversight
and direction from Autism Partnership. She said that they were

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 24, 2009



finally able to file a successful due process against the
Anchorage School District. She shared that, at this point, they
had incurred a debt from the autism program of nore than
$100, 000. She said that the school district was now paying for
the current costs, but had declined to reinburse any of the
previ ous expenses. She shared that the resulting legal fees
were an additional $100, 000. She summarized that early
effective treatnment for children with autism reduced costs, but
that no single service system would bear the entire financial
responsibility for paynent. She suggested that coordinated
support from education funding, Medicaid, and private insurance
was necessary. She stated that HB 187 would ensure that private
insurance carriers provided coverage of vital health care
services for children with autism She opined that this would

save mllions of dollars for the state of Al aska over the life
of each child. She appealed to the National Federation of
| ndependent Businesses (NFIB) to renobve its opposition to any
new nmandates on insurance coverage. She asked that autism be

given the same considerations for treatnment as for polio,
cancer, or diabetes. She offered her strong support for HB 187.

4:25:22 PM

TONJA UPDI KE shared that her child was diagnosed with autism at
18 nmonths. She decl ared that he began speech, occupational, and
physi cal therapies which all "helped trenmendously."” She said
that her husband's insurance did not cover everything. She
pointed out that this early intervention would save noney in the
long term She expressed that autismwas a grow ng problem but

that it was treatable. She enotionally described the
frustration and concern of trying to nmeet all of her son's
needs, wthout also having the insurance coverage. She voi ced

her support for HB 187.
4:29:30 PM
LORI KING spoke about her daughter and pointed out the very

specific early signs of autism that doctors |ooked for, which
i ncl uded aggressive behavior, tantruns, and early walking and

tal king devel opnental signs. She shared that her daughter
required significant clinical treatnent. She noted that when
her daughter, now 18 years of age, was young, there were not
many services avail able. She described a nunber of her

daughter's early indicators. She said that her insurance policy
at the tine covered about 50 percent of nental health services,
which was the category for autism She disclosed that the
problemwas with the wait lists for the services. She explained

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2009



that nost services were provided by non-profits, which needed
full paynment from as many patients as possible. She reported
that as she was working, she did not qualify for Medicaid or
Denali Kid Care for her daughter's treatnent. She stated that
not having "quite enough insurance" resulted in a three year

wait for services. She conpared the HB 187 funding cap of
$36,000 per vyear to the actual costs of $70,000 for funded
servi ces. She expressed her frustration at not having the
services available for those «crucial first 5 years. She

descri bed the necessity for early learning of the social skills.
She said that she supported HB 187.

4:39:23 PM

MLLIE RYAN, Executive Director, Governor's Counci | on
Disabilities & Special Education, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Departnent of Health and Social Services, said that the Council
was conprised of famly nmenbers and representatives from state
agenci es. She relayed that the Council had convened an ad hoc

commttee on autism to inprove the quality of services. She
shared that good progress was being made to increase the
avai lability of services. She said that the Council was very

supportive of HB 187.
4:41: 07 PM

KATHY FI TZGERALD shared that her daughter was severely autistic,
but that her behaviors were not recognized 26 years ago. She
reported that her husband's insurance with |IBM included coverage
for famlies with special needs children, which paid for a |ot
of the therapies. She described sonme of the problens
encountered with a severely autistic child. She offered her
belief that the insurance nmandate would bring nore providers to
Al aska and would have a "positive and wonderful inpact on the

state of Alaska."”™ She stated that Medicaid was a payer of |ast
resort, and that any of the services paid for wth private
i nsurance woul d hel p. She described that this was an issue of

parity to ensure that services for autism were included, and
that this was a wi se investnment for Al aska.

4:45:58 PM

LI NDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Anchorage Ofi ce,
Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
(DCEED), said, in response to Co-Chair Keller, that she did not
have detailed cost estimates. She said that about 40 percent of
the people covered by private insurance plans in Alaska were in

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 24, 2009



pl ans regul ated by the Division of Insurance. She said that the
rest were pre-enpted by Enployee Retirenent Incone Security Act
of 1974 (ERISA), and therefore not required to follow any
mandates. She said that mandates in state statute had no inpact
on self insured plans. She listed the types of insurance
coverage that would not be inpacted by |egislation, regardless
of bei ng good public policy.

4:48: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL requested a pie chart to show the
i nsurance market, including ERI SA He opined that it was
necessary to review the noney being paid toward the services,
and to determine if there was enough noney to support a service
delivery system

4:51:22 PM

M5. HALL explained that ERI SA prograns were private enployers
who self funded the health care.

4:51: 36 PM
REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL listed sonme of the ERISA enployers to
i ncl ude ConocoPhillips, and Alyeska Pipeline Service Conpany.

He asked if it was realistic for this group to support the
i ndustry base needed to supply the benefit.

4:52: 08 PM

M5. HALL referred to a prior hearing for application for
conversion froma "not for profit” to a "for profit" for Prenera

Bl ue Cross. She nentioned that the studies from that hearing
were still available and could be transferred to a pie chart.
4:53:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that the pie chart would help gain a
realistic look of whether a smaller insurance group generated
enough pay-out to support the service industry.

4:53: 55 PM

M5. HALL said that she would supply that data.

4:54:13 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 24, 2009



REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA referred to an Institute of Social and
Econom ¢ Research (ISER) study and the Department of Health and
Social Services investigation of the uninsured. She nenti oned
that an | SER report was al so studying the "under-insured."

4:54: 54 PM

M5. HALL replied that she had worked wth both of them and that
she would utilize those resources.

4:55: 09 PM

CO CHAIR HERRON asked Ms. Hall for her witten opinion of a
mandate in HB 187 as opposed to a nandated offering.

4:55:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there was any restraint on a
mandate for a condition when a patient clained there were not
services wwthin the state.

M5. HALL said that there was not any restriction.

4:56: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the nandate required
that available services be mde available, even if it neant
travel to another state.

4:56: 54 PM

M5. HALL agreed.

4:57: 05 PM

[ HB 188 was reschedul ed for Thursday, March 26, 2009.]

4:57:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked that if coverage was mandat ed, would
that affect fundi ng under Medi cai d.

4:58:12 PM
M5. HALL, in response to Representative Seaton, said that for a

benefit to be nmandated, it would be need to be placed in
| egi sl ati on.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2009



4:58: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the ABA utilization dropped off
after early childhood intervention, and he asked why the bil
i ncl uded coverage through the age 21.

5:00:12 PM

M5. ROUSSON said that ABA was one of the nost effective
treatnments for autism spectrum disorders (ASD), especially with

intensive treatnment at an early age. She listed a variety of
other treatnents, and noted that the severity of the ASD
determned a case by case review for treatnent. She expl ai ned

that the cost analysis reflected necessary care, but that this
care varied for each diagnosis. She observed that the ABA was
also extrenely stressful on the famly, and that they did not
want the treatnment to continue any |onger than was necessary.
5:04:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked again about the reason for nandated
coverage to continue until age 21.

5:04: 42 PM

M5. ROUSSON said that the age limtation was based on other
simlar states' |egislation.

5:05: 50 PM
CO CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.
5:06: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said that HB 187 was a good basic bill,
and that any additional questions could be answered.

5:06: 37 PM

[ HB 187 was hel d over.]

ADJ QURNVENT

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2009



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 5:07 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2009



